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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

DECEMBER17, 2012 
DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2012-0389 
1905 W. 38TH STREET 

 
PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1935 house. 
 
ARCHITECTURE 

One-story, wing-and-gable plan, hipped-roof frame cottage with a partial-width side-gabled 
wraparound porch on plain, square, wood posts; ornamental front-facing gable; single and 
paired 1:1 fenestration. 
RESEARCH 

The house appears to have been built in 1935 by Mrs. Noyes D. Smith, the widow of a 
prominent coal supply merchant in Austin, but she never lived here.  The sewer service 
permit, dating from later in 1935 shows the owner as Donald D. Williamson, who, with his 
wife, Heloise, is listed as the owners and occupants in the 1935 and 1937 city directories.  
Donald Williamson was a chemical and civil engineer, who originally came from Rochester, 
New York, and was working as the laboratory chief for the State Highway Department at 
the time he and Heloise lived here.  The house was a rental unit from around 1938 to 
around 1948, with tenants which included a storekeeper for the Austin State School, 
another lab assistant for the State Highway Department, and a geologist for the U.S. 
Geological Survey.  By 1949, Joseph and Mildred McClure are listed as the owners and 
occupants in the city directories.  He was the general manager for a life insurance company, 
and later became an agent for the Austin Insurance Company.  The McClures lived here 
until around 1953.  From 1954 until the mid-1960s, the house was the parsonage for the 
Shoal Crest Baptist Church on W. 34th Street.  Later, it was purchased by John and Donna 
Underwood; he was a truck foreman for a concrete company.  From the mid-1970s on, the 
house was a rental unit with a high turnover in tenancy. 
STAFF COMMENTS 

The house is not listed in any city survey. 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Encourage relocation over demolition, but release the permit upon completion of a City of 
Austin Documentation Package consisting of photographs of all elevations, a dimensioned 
sketch plan, and a narrative history of the property for archiving at the Austin History 
Center. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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1905 W. 38th Street 
ca. 1935 

 
 

 
 

OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
1905 W. 38th Street 
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City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
December, 2012 
 
1992  Brent D. and Stacy B. Wiltshire, renters 
  No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Brent D. and Stacy B. Wiltshire were new 
residents at this address. 

 
1985-86 Robert Irvin, renter 
  No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Robert Irvin was a new resident at this 
address. 

 
1981  No return 
 
1977  Charles Elder, renter 
  Student 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Charles Elder was a new resident at this 
address. 

 
1973  Vacant 
 
1969  John L. and Donna G. Underwood, owners 
  Truck foreman, Texas Redi-Mix Concrete, 2906 E. 19th Street. 
 
1962  Rev. Joseph F. and Evelyn Frederick, owners 

Pastor, Shoal Crest Baptist Church, 1310 W. 34th Street. 
 
1958  Rev. George W. and Joann Traver, renters 

Pastor, Shoal Crest Baptist Church, 1310 W. 34th Street. 
 
1954  Rev. William and Carol Suhr, renters 

Pastor, Shoal Crest Baptist Church, 1310 W. 34th Street. 
 
1952 Joseph P. and Mildred McClure, owners 

Agent, Austin Life Insurance Company, 800 Lavaca Street. 
 

1949  Joseph P. and Mildred McClure, owners 
General manager, Franklin Life Insurance Company, 809 Capital National Bank 
Building, 7th and Colorado Streets. 

 
1947  William L. and Ruth Broadhurst, renters 

William: Geologist, United States Geological Survey 
Ruth:  Typist, United States Internal Revenue Service 
 
 

1944-45 William L. and Ruth M. Broadhurst, renters 
  William: Geologist, United States Geological Survey 
  Ruth:  Deputy collector, United States Internal Revenue Service 
 
1941  Charles E. and Tennie L. O’Dell, renters 
  Lab assistant, State Highway Department 
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1939  William D. and Lena Foster, renters 
  Storekeeper, Austin State School 
 
1937  Donald D. and Eloise Williamson, owners 
  Laboratory chief, State Highway Department 
 
1935  Donald D. and Heloise Williamson (not listed as owners) 
  Laboratory chief, State Highway Department 
 
1932-33 The address is not listed in the directory. 
  NOTE:  Donald D. and Heloise Williamson are not listed in the directory. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES 
DONALD D. and HELOISE WILLIAMSON (ca. 1935 – ca. 1938) 
Donald and Heloise Williamson appear in the 1940 U.S. Census at 1508 Mohle Drive.  Donald 
Williamson was then 42 years old, had been born in New York, and was a civil engineer for an 
asphalt institute.  Heloise Williamson was then 35 and had been born in Tennessee.  She had 
no occupation listed in the census report.  The couple had three children:  Richard, 16, Ruth, 8, 
and Donna, 6.  Richard had been born in Tennessee; the two younger daughters had both been 
born in Texas. 
 
Donald and Heloise Williamson appear in the 1930 U.S. Census for Dallas.  He was a chemical 
engineer for a laboratory.  They rented their house. 
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Donald D. Williamson’s World War I draft registration card shows that he was living in 
Rochester, New York and that he was a student private in the Machine Gun Training Center at 
Camp Hancock, a U.S. Army Training Camp. 
 

 
Obituary of Donald D. Williamson 
Austin American, March 30, 1963 

 



 D.3 - 7 

 
Funeral notice for Donald D. Williamson 

Austin American, March 31, 1963 
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Obituary of Heloise Williamson 

Austin American-Statesman, October 3, 1993 
 
CHARLES E. and TENNIE O’DELL (ca. 1940 – ca. 1942) 
Charles Ed and Tennie O’Dell appear in the 1940 U.S. Census at 1900 W. 38th Street, a house 
they rented.  Charles was then 25, had been born in Texas, and was a laboratory assistant for 
the State Highway Department.  Tennie O’Dell was then 23, and had been born in Texas.  She 
listed Abilene, Texas as her prior home.  The couple had a lodger, Albert Cupp, a 24-year old 
Texas-born laboratory assistant at the State Highway Department, who had previously lived in 
Tyler, and Tennie’s mother, Louisa Glasgow, a 50-year old widow who had previously lived in 
Abilene.  She had no occupation listed.  The 1930 U.S. Census reveals that Charles Edd O’Dell 
was the son of Jess and Jessie O’Dell, farmers in Denton County. 
 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Daniel F. and Viola Smith as the renters of this house, but they 
do not appear in the city directory listings.  Daniel Smith was a 38-year old Texas-born research 
chemist for the State Highway Department.  Viola Smith was 28, had been born in Texas, and 
had no occupation listed.  They had a young son, Daniel James Smith, 8. 
 
WILLIAM and RUTH BROADHURST (ca. 1943 – ca. 1948) 
The 1940 U.S. Census report shows William L. and Ruth Broadhurst living in a rented house in 
Plainview, Texas, where William was a field geologist for the State Board of Water Engineers.  
William Broadhurst was then 34 and had been born in Indiana; Ruth was 30 and had been born 
in Oklahoma.  They had a daughter, Patricia Anne, 7, who had been born in Texas, and a niece, 
Jacqueline Daniel, 5, who had been born in Oklahoma. 
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Obituary of Ruth Broadhurst 

Austin American-Statesman, March 30, 1997 
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0 
Obituary of William L. Broadhurst 

Austin American-Statesman, November 20, 2008 
 
JOSEPH P. and MILDRED McCLURE (ca. 1948 – ca. 1953) 
Joseph and Mildred McClure appear in the 1940 U.S. Census in a rented apartment at 1210 ½ 
West Lynn Street in Austin.  Joseph McClure was then 42, had been born in Indiana, and was a 
life insurance agent.  Mildred McClure was also 42, and had been born in Indiana.  They had 
lived in Longmont, Colorado in 1935.  They had two sons, Stanton, 16, who had been born in 
Wyoming, and Judson, 6, who had been born in Colorado. 
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Obituary of Joseph P. McClure 

Austin American-Statesman, April 9, 1995 
 
 



 D.3 - 13 

 
Water service permit to Mrs. Noyes D. Smith for this address (1935) 

 

 
The 1935 sewer service permit shows D.D. Williamson as the owner of the property. 

 
 


